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FUND INFORMATION

Management Company

KASE Funds Limited

Registered Office:

ath Floor, Trade Centre, 11, Chundrigar
Road, Karachi- 74200, Pakistan
Principal Office

5th Floor, Trade Centre, 1|, Chundrigar
Road, Karachi-74200, Pakistan

UAN; (92-21) 111 535 535

Fax: (92-21) 3263 9168

UAL: wwaw kasbfimds.com

Board of Directors of KASE Funds Limited
B Robert John Richard Cwen - Chairman
K. Amer Maghool - Chief Execufive

M Qalser P Muft

M. Muzafiar Al Shah Bukhari

Chief Financial Officer
Syed Adnan Abdali

Company Secretary
Syed Adnan Abdali

Audit Commities
. Robert John Richard Cwen
M. Claiser P Wit
I Muzatfar Al Shah Bukharni

Trustes

Cental Depository Company of Pakisatan
Limited, CDC House, 99-8, Block ‘B,
SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Falsal, karachi.

Fund Ranking
1 Star by PACRA Short Term
3 Star by Long Term

Bankers to the Fund
KASE Bank Limited
ARL Bank Limited
Barrj Bank Lirnited

Auditors

A. F. Ferquson & Company

State Like Bullding # 1-C, L1, Chundrigar Raod,
P.0. Box No. 4716, Karachi- 74000 Pakistan,

Legal Advisor

Bawaney & Pariners

Room No. 404, 4th Floor, Beaumont Plaza,
G-cl- 10, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines,
Karachl-75530

Registrar

KASE Funds Linmted

ath Floor, Trade Cenre, 1. Chundrigar
Foad, Karachi-74200, Paksitan

Distributors

KASE Funds Limited

KASE Bank Limited

KASE Securities Limited

1GI Investment Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Management Company Rating
Rated AMZ by JCR-VIS




MISSION STATEMEN

The Fund aims to generate a positive returm and
long term capltal appreciation for unit holders by
investing in both the Equity and Debt markets.
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KASBARRRE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

For the vear ended June 30, 2013

The Board of Cirectors of KASE Funds Limitad (KFL), the Maragement Company of KASE fesst Alocation Fund JAAF, the Fund), ia plasead to prasant tha
Armus Raport, togather with the auditad firendal stsbamantz of tha Fund for tha yaer ended Juna 30, 3003

Financial Highlights

FY 2013 FY 2012

Mat Income (Rs. in million) 75,752 3179
Mat Assets as at Juna 30 (Rs. in million) 344 GOE 364 837
MaAN per Unit a5 on June 30 (Rs. )" 48,74 3B.97
Feturn {Sa) 26.21 5.25

* Ew-bAN after final distribution.
 Parvalue of sach unit is Bz 100,

Econamie Enviranment

Fakistan's sconomical woes confinued to rouble its economic managss who strugoled unsucessstully b contain its fiscal deficit within the target 2
amcaaded to 8% of GOP badsad by continuad high subeidies. discrationary devdopmeantal espendbures and incraaaing cost of domestic debd servicing
Almst Al macro fiscal targets such &8 ta reverue, subsices were missed and reached to e bghs, Curent Scoount Defict, howsar, was relstively
tamead at around 1% of GOF:

The country hae yat baen unable o craft iE wey out of tha quagmirs of elecincty and pas shorteges which hava bogped economic groath for some tima
o Emergy shomages ane incressing leading to lower procudtion and coreeguently hampering expors and incressing imports, while fsing urempkeyment
and rapid detanicration in theoversll quality of lifa is giving wey bo wida spread socisl unrest, As per some opinicne., the continued electncity shortage hes
affected GOP growth by 2% in FY13

During the year, mammoth IMF repayment of over kept pressunng the Fupse againat the Collar forcing Central Bank to time and sgain intnude in the markst
te containthe depreciation. The central bank, as on June 30th 20012, weas USD 10,800 which came down by 45% to USD 8k by June 30&h 2073, This
dadine mpether with some optimiam in US economy lad Rupes to daprecista by more than 6% sgainat the green back

CH inflation wae perhaps the most comforting figure with 7.4% in FY 132 a2 apainat 11% inFY1 2 Thia significant dadine helpad cantral bank to foous on
roarth anvd conseduently to decresse the dscount rate by 3% From 12% in FY1Z te 3% in FY13)

Capital Markels

The domestic equity market ended the yaar with an atiractive ratum of 52%. aftar recording a modest gainof 10.4% in lest year The drastic changein
Fortunes was caused by sitractive stock vlualions, forsign imestor's entry inke e marked and optimistic expectations from wpcoming dected setup, The
arar=a deily yolume dso remained haakhy in P13 with 237m ehares =8 agairet 130m shares last yaar. Forsign investors poured USE 5689m in the outgaing
yesar a5 compared b an outflow of LS 138m in the previcus year,

Irreestment Stratedy

EAAF ams to achieve the objective of generating regular income together with capital sppeeciation, The fund sms te mesgimize ot retums and culpersim
the benchmark

Un tha inpemeaids, the fund invests both in shorter duration and lenger durstion dabt instrumanta 8 well g8 fixed incoma transactions in tha capital markst
to achieve conststent income for Unit Holdera, Onithe equity sida, tha Fund invssta in fundementally undervalued stodss that have business growth proepacts
correspondng with oood eamings growts while aso corsidering qualkatiee factors such as the aquality of the maragement,

Furd Perfiormance
For the yaar emded June 33, 2013 the Fund aarmad a return of £5.21% == apainst tha berchmank returm of 20659% and the Nat f=set W=lue per unit of
Ehe fund at the dese of the period stood at Bs, 4674 The net income for the year ended June 30, 2015 s Bs 75752 million




5N POND
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MAN] MEmﬂomﬁan

For the vear ended June 30, 2013 )

Income Distribution

Tha Board of Diractors of KASE Funde Limitad approvad the dividend distribution of B, 1005 par unit to tha'wnit holders of © the yasr andad
Jume 30, F3, \

A the Furd Fee distributed among the ot bolders mob less than nirety per cent of its aooounting income for the ¢ i ended June 30, 2013 as recioed
by capital gains whetber realiped o unrealized, therefore, its income will not be subject b incnme ta under clase 90060 Pt | of the Second Schedule to

thea Income Tax Crdinance, 2000.
Sale and redemption of units

The fund size of KAAF was Ra. 364.837 million on.June 50, 2012 During the year. units worth Ra. 5.687 million were issusd ang unt
110904 million were redeemed B on Jume 300 2003 the totd number of cutstanding units was 7,072,495 with a wdue af B

Code of Corporate Goverhanee

The Board of Directors stabes that: _

al The Financial Ratements prepared by the Maragement Company, present fary the state of affars of the Fund and results of its operations, G
flowes and movement inunit holdar's fund

bl Poper bocks of sooounts of the Fund have been maintained

cl Appropriate scoounting policies have bean adoptad for preparation of finencd statamants of the Fund and accounting estimates are besed on
ressonaile and prodent jucdaments,

d| Approved aocouning stendsrds comprise of such Inkemational Finarcisl Reporting Standards JFRS) msued by the Infemational Aocourting Standerds
Board a5 are notified under the Companies Ordirance, 1984, the requirements of the Trust Daed the Men Banking Finance Companies [Establishment
and Requiation| Rulea, #0303 the NEFC Rules], the Mor-Banking Financa Compeniss and Nolifiad Enfitizs Regulations. 2008 the NEFC Ragulations
2008 and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF hewe been followed in the prepaeation of the firencia
statamants of tha Fund Wharavar, the raguiramants of tha Truet Daed, tha NEFC Rules, tha NBFC Ragulatiore: 3008 and tha aaid drectives differ
wath the regurements of these standards, the requirernents of the Trust Deed the MEFC Bagulstions 2008 and the said drectives shal preval.

L The systemn of interral control is sound in desgn and hes been offectively implemented and menitored

fl There ara no significant doubts sbout the Fund's ability 10 continus 28 & going corcem

al There has been o materiadl departure Trom the best pracices of corporate govemance, a5 detailed in the listing regulations

h| Out=standing statulory psyments on scoount of taxes, duties, levies and charpea if amg hewe b2an fully d=doesd inthe financia statameantz

i ey operating and financial data is enclosed,

i The statement 56 fo the welus of imrsstmant of provident fund i= not spplicable in the casa of Fund a& those sxpansas ara boma by tha Manegament
Company

ki The detalad pattamn of unit holding as reguired by the code of corporate goverrencs is disclosed in note 27,

Megtings of the Directors

Statament showing attendance of the dractors inthe mestings of the Board of Directors for the year ended June 30 2002 §s disclosed in rote 29 of the
firendial statements.

Curing the yaar. ro trades ware camied out in the units of the Furd by the Direciore, CEQ, Company Secretary & CFD, and their spouses and miner childran
of the Management Company other than those disclsed in rete 22 of these firencd datements

Pattern ol Holding

B onJune 30, 209 2 the pattern of Meldings unks) presents a diversified irvestor bage, Detailed pattern s deslsed in note 27 of the finarcial satements

Future: Cutlook

Going fervard, fate of issumnce of 36 license. a much needed and awaited Etisalal payment, further reimbursement of Coaliion Suppont Fund, condtions
bshind IMF loan and further aid from other intamaticnal development banks will likely decide the futwre course of market.
Harschi Chisf Exacutive

KASE Assel Allocation Fune Annusl Repor oo the wear Bn '
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KASBARRRE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

For the vear ended June 30, 2013

Auditors

The Boerd of Directors on racommeandation of Audit Committee appanted Més BPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chertared Aocountants ss Auditors of the Fund for
Ehe year ended June 200 2074, The resson of not re-gppainting refiring sudtons is 1o appaint one sucdt firm 2 aodters for all funds unds managemenl

Bckrowledgement

The Board of Directors of the Maragement Company thanks the Fund's valued investors, the Securkies and Exchenge Commission of Pakistan, The Sate
Bank of Palastan, Cantral Daposicony Company of Pekistan Limited ithe Tnetes) for their confidenca, confinued coopsration and support. Tha Dirachors slso
appreciate the dforts put in by the managament team,

For and on behalf of the Board

Auguet 27, 3013 Amer Maghool
Karachi Chief Execitive
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

o
;

FY¥ 2013
Met Asset as of June 20 344,818,957
neld agset value per dhare ar certificata a5 af lune 300 43 7549
Lelling price for units as af fune 30 49,75
Repurchade price for unite Ao af e 50 43 7548
highast selling price 51.17
highast repurchase price 1T
kowest selling price 39.75
hoaest repurchass price 3iB.as
Chgributiang:
fnietiea
1st il
and il
Final 10.5
Soserage annual raturn of the Collective Imaestment Schame:
For the perad of ane year 251%
For the period of two years 2817
Far the period of thras gears 20.84%
Since Insegtion fdate af kawnch] 403

Weighted average portfolie duration { o case of income and maney markst fumd) -

total return of the Collective Investmant Schama, breakdown inta;
Capital growth
Incoma distributions

~
_.I
\'Em_/fF
Fy FY 2011

375,163,341 37E,000,000
ELE- 3507

3357 IE.87
aaoT g0
LB
44,97
FE.87

:‘\L E.0O7

—

0.015 mil

LRL L 5028
-2.45% I
-3.54% -1E.46%

-16.75% -18.67%

w B EASE fzeet Alpcation Fumd Anrual Report for the year ‘= 1: 202013
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ANNUAL FUND MANAGERS' REPORT

1. Type & Category of Fund
Cpen-ered Assel Allocation

2, Inseption Date
Decembsar 31, 2007

3. Irvestment ohjective
The Find seaks to generate regular income tagethar with long term capital appreciation by investing in bath the income and debt marksts,

4, Bocomplishment of olbective
Thea fund i= achievireg its objective of genarating regular income by investing in the fixad incoma instrumeants wathin tha SECP rulea. The fund continues: o
tarpst long-tam capital sppradation through investmerk in aguities within the govaming nules.

5 Banchmark
50% & manth KIBOA + 50% KSE 20 Index

6, Performance Retum (please nsert the rebum compan son char, IF necessary]

EAAF Return Benchmark retum
Sinca inception 4.25% B4, Tos
FY 2013 2 E1 20 635
CY 213 12 #85% 10455
Far Juna 13 -1.26% S1.71%

7. Strategies and policies employed during the period

O b coritivnied bauicity pressore in the markets and sk aversion by the participants, the corperate debt market ramained highly depressad resilting in
trades mainly concentratad fowards gowt. backad TFCa/Suladks and top reted banking instumants. In tha prasance of vary few buyars, the prices of magority
of TR checdineed sagrificantly curineg e e, howsssier, an paper, if rernainad shable dus te the picing mecharism wsed by mue funds The fund remansd
fomead in offloading TFCa and to restructure non-parforming corporata delst. Onthe eguity sida, Tha Fund invested in fundementally undareluad stocks
Ehest bad busireess gronst s pros pects comespanding with good eamings grost hwhile slso consdening qualtative faotors such a6 the quality of Ehe management,

B, Weighled Asset allocation
Aszset Mlocation June 30, 213 June 20, 2012

Cithar Eguity Imestmant= 3.0 8%
Chemicak: T.35% 37
Commercial Banks - 10 45%
O & G 2T1% 26.03%
Fersonal Goods - 0 75%
Food Producers . 8.97%
Plecements B B5 8 80%
TFCs & Subaiks 972% 4.20%
Caeshr & Chlwer el 14,75% 20, S5

9, Significart changes inasset allocation during the period
Tha Fund's sepoawre bo TFC & Sukuks was increaead & bit while tha allocstion of Cash & Cther Assats within the portfolic ramaina st 14.75% inling with
fund strategy. Asset allocation of the equity portion changes dwnamically & per sechor outlook

10 Fured Performnanc:
Faturme onthe Fund ramained cn highar sida 88 compara 1o last years. KAYF hes posted rafum of 25 31% ageirst berchmark raturm of 2060 for tha year
anded June 30, 2013 It has recorded a return of12.26% in OY12 apaingt benchmark return of 10.45% for the period,

Thee Al &f the fund were PKR 264,837 millon (M8 per unit: Bs 26 97) on June 200 20902 ancd at e end of the period the AU of the fund stoeod & PEA
A3 A 80 million PAY per unit: Rs 47.67)




HARBARPRE

On the positive side. P! inflafion wee racorded at an average of 7.4% during thea year, ramaining wall within the oo
views thase trends in inflation. the caniral bank reduced the polioy rate by 300 basis poinits o boost the privata
anvd resuling printing of mongy, Howees, the privale sectorn continues b be crowded ool dis to the high government
intha markat, and risk avarsion by lenders amid high propaeity of banks {o land bo tha government

cutpoing year & compared ko an outflow of USD 1859m in the pravicus yaar.

12, Fumnd parformance by market{s) and by instnaments
For detalks, plaase refer bo the full yemsly aorounts

13 . Distributicon
The Fund digtributed PKR 10,50 per unit (Par Valus of PER 50 for the year andad Juna 30, 2013

14 . Significant changes in the state of affsirs
Mo sigrificant changes in affars wara witnessad.

15, Breskdown of unit holdings by size
Breskoovn of unit holdings by size s same a5 inthe drechor's report,

18, Linit Splits
Thera were no unit splits during the period

18. Soft Commiszsion
The maragement compary received soft commission from the brokers i the faem of research raports which were gent in both soft and lard coples

KASB Asset Allecation Fund Anual Report for the year
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS OF KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Feport of the Trustes pursuant to Regulation 41{h) and Glause 8 of Schedule ¥ of the Non-Banking Finance Compandes and Notifled Entities
Regulations, 2008

Yie. Central Depository Company of Pekistan Limited. baing the Trustee of KASE Asset Allbcation Fund ithe Fund ara of the opinion thet KASE Funds Limitad
bieing the Maragement Company of the Fund has inall mabenal respects managed the Furd dorng the year endad Jure 200 2002 in acoordencs with the
provisiona of tha follosing

1 Limitatiors imposed on the investmant powers of the Menagemant Company undar the constitutive documsants of the Fund;
il The pricing issuance and rademplion of units ars carmad out in sccordarce with the reguremants of the conatitutive documeants of the Fund; and

i The Mon-Banking Firence Companies (Establistenent and Fegulations) Bules, 2003, the Mor-Banking Firence Companies ard Motified Entities
Fagulshiora, #008 and the corstitutive documents of the Fund

Wiz weoul like bo dress umit holders” attention towerds the fact that the Fund has recogrized provision amounting to Re. 7.578 million apainst CHA Golf
Club Piatirum Membership Cards refrespectively on June 30, 2013 witheut obtaining prier spproval of SECP as required uder SECP directive. Furthes,
we are of tha visw that Meragamant Company hes mads socess provision ageingt these Cards which has bean communicatad to the SECP and the
Manapement Jompany

BMubammad Hanil Jakhira
Chisf Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachl, Qetober 25, 2015



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CO P HﬂTEGﬂHEHNﬂNEi

For the year ended June 30, 2013

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Comporate Gowemance (the Code) containedin Aequiaiol Mo 35 of the Listing Rgouiations
of the Sock Exchange for the purpose of establishing a framesork of good povemance, whereby a listedigompany is
b=t practices of Comporaba Governance. ‘
KASE Funds Limited (the Management Company, an unlisted public company, manages the affpirs of KGO v i i

Bging & unit trust open end sohame dees not have its own Board of Directors, The Management Company has 20lied the pringiples contaned in the Code
to tha Fund. whose unite ara listed a8 asecurty on the Exdhange, in tha following manrer: ,
1. The Managemsnt Company encourages represantation of independent non-executive directofBAAt present, the Board includes:

Category Names ‘
Irdapzn dient Mot Execufive Wi Qiszar P, Mt L X
Iredppscan dieant Mo Execufive Mr. Robad C. Richard (esan

Cihief Exacuie Cfficer

P md epeenadan| Mr &mar Maghnol

M- Eseili v Dnscians

Mar-ndegendant Wi BuzaTar Ali Shah Bukhaw

The indapendent draciors meaet tha chteriaof indapendenca under clawee i (b of tha Code.

z Tha directors hawa corfimnad that rone of them ara saning as & diractor in more then seven listed compani=s. including this !.' ﬂjlm
the listed subsicianies of listed holding companies where spplicable), '

3 Al the resident directors of the Manapement Company are registered a8 tapayers and none of them have defauted in m.'m&rt of :«.- t-::-a

i

il

Banking company, a OF| or an NEFC or, being a member of a stock eschange, hawe been declared o5 a defaulter by that stock ®
Thera v no casual vacancy occurmed n the Board duniing the yaar

Tha Management Company has praperad a *Goda of Conduct® and hae ansurad that appropriats steps have bean tskan to dissamirate it throughoot
tha company sdong with its supporfing policies and procadures.

i Tha Board hes developed & vision / miesion statament, an owarall corporste strabagy and sipnificant polici=s for the Fund. & complate rsoord of
particulars of significent policies slong with tha datas on which thess were approved or smendsd has bean mairtsined

T Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisons on matenial ransactions, incuding appeintment and detemination of remuneration
and terms and conditiens of erpleyment of the CED amd other executive and nen-executive directors hawe been taken by the Board

Fi The mestings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman amd the Board met af lesst orce in every quarter, Written notices of te Board
maetings. slong with agends and working papars. were circulated at |asst seven days bafora the meetings. Tha minutss of the meetings wara
sppoprigtdy racorded and ciroulated

9 The Menzgemant Company has conducted an criantstion coursa for its directors to spprise them of thair dutizs and responaibilities.

100 Curineg the vesr, there wes no change of the Company Secretary and Chief Fnancial Officer LEF[EH

1. [uring the yeer the Board hos cutsourced the intemal awdt function to fim of Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the pumese and are comversant with the policies and procedures of the Fund,

12, The Directors’ report relaling b the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2093 has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code
and fully descnbes the salient matters requirad to ba disdosad

13 The financial statements of the Fund wers duly andorsad by the CEQ and CFO of the Mansgement Compeny befora approval of the Board

14, Tha Gireclors. CEO, and sgacutives do not hald any intarsst in the units of the Fund othar than theose disdoes in pattem of unit heldars of the Fund

15 The Fun b complied with all the applcable corporate and firancial reporting requirements of the Code

18 The Board has fomed an Audt Committes, & comprises of thiee members, all of whom are non-execitive drectors of the Management Company
ircluding the Chairman of the Committes wha i & independent dracton The related party transaction were placed before the Audt Commiffes
meting held to approvs anmual accownks and wars sppioved by the Board with necessany justification for non arm's length trevsaction §if
and pricing metheds for transaction that were mads to terme equivalent fo those that preval inthe am's length trareaction only if such terma
can be substantiatad

17, Tha meetings of the Audit Committea were held &t esst onca inswary quarter and prior 1o the approval of intarim and findl results of the Fund as
required by the Code. The terme of rdference hove boon opproved in the mesting of the Board and the Committos hos ke adviscd be ereurs
compliance with those tems of referance,

18, The Board has fomed a Human Resource and Bamuneralion committee, It comprises of three members including the Chairman of the Committes
wilha s & non-executive drecion

1% The board has set up an effectiva intamal audt function which comprizss of personnal who are comsidersd sutably qualifisd and aperisncad for
tha purpose and ars corwersant with palicies and pmcedurss of the company.

20 The statuory suditors of tha Fund have confirmed that they hava b=ean gven a =atisfactory raling undar tha Cudlity Control Reviaw program of tha
Iratituta of Chartered Accountents of Pebastan JCAFL that they or any of tha parners of tha firm thar epowses snd minor childran do not hold wnits
of the Fumd and that the firm ard all its parners aee incompliance with the Inberraticnal Federation of Accourtants (IFACT guidelines on code of
ethics a6 adopted by the AP

H. Thestalulory suditorns or the persons associsbed with them have et been appointed b provide ather seraces et in 2coondance with the listing
rapulations and tha sudtors hava confirmed that thay have obsarvad IFAC puidalines in this ragard.

#2. The 'doesd pericd’, prior to the anrouncement of imtarim £ final resulta, snd business: decsiens. which may materially affact tha merkst prica of
Fund's units, was detamined and intimatad to directors, amployess and stock echangeEl

23 Maerid ¢ price sensitive information has been dsseminated ameng dl market participants at ence through stock exchangeis)

24, Weconfim that al ofber material principles enshrined in the the Coda have been complied with

mrdll KASE Asset Allscation Fund Annual Report for the year IL 20, 2013

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Kerachi Amer Maghool
August 27, 2013 Chisf Exacutive (fficer
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS ON KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
“THE FUND"
ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We e reviesad the Staterment of Compliznce with the best peactices contained in the Code of Corporate Gowerrance praparad by the Board of drectors
of KASE Funds Limited, tha Management Comparry of KASE fz=at Alocation Fund to comply with the Listing Ragulations Mo 35 {Chepter 8) of the Barach
Stock Exchange where the Fund is listed

The responsbity for compliance with the Code of Comporale Goverrance i that of the Beard of Directors of the Maragement Company, (ur respersibility
i5 b resiew, to the edent where sich compliance can be abjactively veriiad whether the Stabement of Compliance reflects the stabius of the Fund's
compliance with the prowsions of the Coda of Corporate Goverrance and raport if it does not. A review & limited primearily to inguiries of the Company's
persinel and review of wanicls documents prepared by the Management Company b comply with the Code

& gt of cur audk of the firencial statements we are reouiraed o obbain an inderstanding of the accounting and interrd contral systems sufficiant o
plan tha awdit ard devalop an Sffective sudt spproach We have not carried owt any apacial reviaw of the intamal contmol aystam te anable us o
BARrESS an oplron as to whether the Board's statement on infermal control covers all controls amd the effectivensss of such interral contrals

Aegulation 25 & of the Listing Bepdation Mo, 35 reogares the Mansgement Company b place Before the Board of Directors for thar corgideration and
spproval, related party trensactions distinguishing bebwesan transactions carrigd out on ferms equivalent to those that praval in am's length fransactions
Al traresctions which are rob execubed 8 am's length price recording propsr ustification for wsing such stamate pricing meskanis, Further, all such
trareactions are also reguired b be seperstely placed before the audit committes, We are only recuired and bave ersured complisnce of the above
requiremants o tha astent of approval of related pary freresctions by tha Board of Cireclors and placamant of sudh tremeaciions before the fudt Committea
We have not carried aut any procedures to determing whether the reated party transactions were undertsien at am's length prices o not

Beged onour reve, nothing has come to cur atention which causes i o belisve tha the Statement of Compliance does not sppopristaly reflact the
Maragement Company's compliance for and on behalf of the Fund, in &l matarial respects. with tha best practices comaned in the Code of Corporata
Gousrmance & applicable to the Fund for the year ended June 30,2013

Crate: September 18, 2013

I F. Ferguson & Company
Charered Accmirdan s

Karachi




HARBARPRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO UNI;FHOLDM‘E.H

We herra audited the sccompanying financial statements of KASE Ssset Allocation Fund {hera in after refarrad to a5 "the Fumd™), uhi::;;:é:sa k
ement

ks,

Mlansgement Company's esponsibility for the nanclal statements .
The Maragement Compsaiy of the Fund & responsble for the prepasation and far presentation of these financod o Aeents in sooordnce ekl s pesed
sooourting sendards s8 spplicable in Pekistan, and for such intamal conired a2 management datermines & necessary e 'anable the praparation of financal
statements that are free from matena misstatement, whether dis b fraud o e

Auditors” respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financidl statements based on our audit. W conducted our audt in accordans ~~"""‘1 1 Inkes et
Sandards on Audiing o applicable in Fakistan, Those standards requine that we comply with sthical requirements and plan and perfiol ittt titain
resgonable aesurancs whathar tha financial statements are frae from material misstatamanis.

An audt imeclves parforming procadurss o obtain sudit awdenca sbout the emounts and dedosures in the finandal stabameants. The procaduras Tu
ceniend an the audibor's judgment, incucdng the sssesement af the risks of matedal misstatement of the firancid stabements, whether dus b fraod
errar. In meking thoea risk sszesamants, the suditor corsiders intermal comtrol relevant to the entity's praparation and fair presentation of the finanda
slabaments i order fo desion audt procedarss tha are sppmopiate in the croumstancss, bt nob B the purpose of sxpressingan opinin on the effectiveness
of the entity's inkerna control. An audit alse includss svaluating the appropristaress of socounting paiciss wE=d and the raasonablensss of saooounting
eqtimates made by managemant, & well 2 evalusting the overall presentation of the financial statements, We believea thal the audt sidencs we e
obtsinad is sufficient and sppropriste to provida & basis for cur audt opinion

Erpharsis of matier parsgraph

We drars attertion to note 7 to the accompandng financial statements which sxplaing the matter relating bo the detribution mads by the Furd esceading
the profit for the year

We dresw sttantion to nota 15 to the accomparying financal statamants which refars o an uncertainty relating to the future owoome of tha litigetion
regarding contributien to the Workars' Walfare Fund which is currently pendng sdjudicstion at the Honorable High Court of Sindh
Cur opirion ia nok gualified inrespact of the aforessid mattars.

Opinion

I o pinien, the firancial statements ve a true and Tar siew of the financial pesition of the Fund 26 o June 30, 2013, and of its firencial performance,
cash flows and transactiona for tha yasr then andad in scoordance with approved socourking standsrds == applicable in Fakistan.

KASE Azeet Allpcatian Fumd Anrual Report for the year ‘ 1 302013

RERFOAT OM OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQLNREMENTS

13

Ir our opinion, the firendal satamant= heve baan prapared in =l matenal respects in accordance with the relevent provisions of e Non-Banking Financa
Companies and Netfied Entities Regulations, 2008,

B F Ferpuson & Company
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Rashid A Jaler
Dated: Septambar 18, 2013
Karachi



KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS

Balances with banks

Investments

Receivable against lending under margin trading system
Certificates of investment

Receivable against sale of investments

Dividend and income receivable

Other assets

Deposits and prepayments

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Payable against purchase of investments

Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company

Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unit holders’ funds

CONTINGENCIES & COMMITMENTS

Number of units in issue

Net asset value per unit

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

Note

~N o 0 b

© ~ oo

11
12
13
14

15

16

2013

2012

(Rupees in '000)

57,906 115,743
265,619 244,388
21 3,632
- 28,845
2,798 412
1,266 1,679
21,267 -
3,083 3,056
- 321
351,960 398,076
12,201 29,611
732 969
59 63
352 326
1,496 2,270
14,840 33,239
337,120 364,837
337,120 364,837

(Number of units)

7,072,493 9,363,152
(Rupees)
47.67 38.97

Directo




KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Income

Income from term finance and sukuk certificates

Income from government securities

Income from lending under Margin Trading System

Dividend income

Income from certificates of investment

Profit on bank deposits

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Reversal of provision against non-performing placements 17

Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation in fair value of investments
classified as ‘at fair value through profit or loss'

Expenses

Remuneration of KASB Funds Limited - Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax on Management Company's Remuneration

Federal Excise Duty on Management Company's remuneration

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Annual fee - Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Transaction cost on securities

Settlement and bank charges

Legal and professional charges

Fees and subscription

Auditors' remuneration 18
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 10
Printing and other expenses

Provision against non-performing debt securities - AFS

Provision against non-performing certificates of investment

Provision against other assets

(Reversal) / provision against doubtful income receivables

Total expenses

Net income from operating activities

Net element of income / (losses) and capital gains / (losses)
included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Net income for the year before taxation

Taxation 20
Net income for the year after taxation

Earning per unit 19
The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

2013

2012

----------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

5,258 4,849
46 1,627
2,995 249
9,982 10,694
2,849 -
6,226 12,280
80,065 (12,791)
15,180 9,792
(16,590) 5,693
106,011 32,393
9,323 10,297
1,514 1,347
55 -
748 700
352 326
2,994 1,574
200 80
111 643
365 580
548 459
321 640
122 120
4511 4,046
- 2,842
7,578 -
(4,168) 5,946
24574 29,600
81,437 2,793
(13,263) 386
68,174 3,179
68,174 3,179

Chief Executive Officer

Directo



KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the income statement
Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation in fair value of investments

classified as 'available for sale' during the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

For KASB Funds Limited

(Management Company)

2013
- (Rupees in '000)

2012

68,174 3,179

(3,710) 5,546

64,464 8,725
Directo



KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

2013 2012
----------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Accumulated losses brought forward

- Realised loss (129,162) (133,954)
- Unrealised gain 5,693 7,572
(123,469) (126,382)

Net element of income / (losses) and capital gains / (losses)
included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

- amount transferred to distribution (2,667) (266)
Final distribution: Rs 0.035 per unit for the year ended

June 30, 2012 (2011: Rs. Nil per unit) (328) -
Net income for the year 68,174 3,179
Accumulated losses carried forward (58,290) (123,469)
Accumulated losses carried forward
- Realised loss (41,700) (129,162)
- Unrealised (loss) / gain (16,590) 5,693

(58,290) (123,469)

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer Directo



KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net assets at beginning of the year

Issue of 113,656 units (2012:222,246 units)
Issue of 2,598 bonus units (2012: Nil units)
Redemption of 2,406,913 units (2012: 256,725 units)

Element of income and capital gains included in prices of units issued less
those in units redeemed:

- amount representing accrued (income) / losses and realised capital
gains / (losses) - transferred to the income statement

- amount representing unrealised capital (gains) / losses - transferred
to distribution statement

Unrealised diminution in fair value of investments classified
as 'available for sale' at end of the year

Provision against non-performing debt securities classified as ‘available for sale'

Unrealised diminution in fair value of investments classified
as 'available for sale' at beginning of the year

Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation in fair value of investments classified
as 'available for sale' during the year

Distribution during the year:
- Issue of bonus units
- Cash dividend

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - transferred
to the distribution statement

Net income for the year [excluding net unrealised (diminution) /
appreciation in fair value of investments classified as 'at fair value through
profit or loss' and capital (loss) / gain)]

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) in fair value of investments classified
as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Net income for the year

Net assets at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

2013

2012
........... (Rupees in '000)

364,837 357,767
5,687 7,883
101 -
(110,904) (9,152)
(105,116) (1,269)
13,263 (386)
2,667 266
15,930 (120)
(36,747) (28,526)
4,511 4,046
28,526 30,026
(3,710) 5,546
(101) -
(227) -
(328) -
(2,667) (266)
4,699 10,277
80,065 (12,791)
(16,590) 5,693
68,174 3,179
337,120 364,837
Directo




KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year

Adjustments for non cash and other items:

Unrealised diminution / (appreciation) in fair value of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Provision against non-performing debt securities

Reversal of provision against non-performing placements

Provision against non-performing placements written off

Provision against non-performing certificates of investment

Provision against other assets

Provision against non-performing certificates of investment written off

(Reversal) / provision for doubtful income receivable

Net realised element of loss / (income) and capital losses / (gains) included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed

Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Placements
Certificates of investment
Receivable against lending under margin trading system
Receivable against sale of investments
Dividend and income receivable
Investments
Other assets
Deposits and prepayments
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable against purchase of investments
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Net payments from sale and redemption of units

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents during the yeai
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

Note 2013

2012
........... (Rupees in '000)

68,174 3,179
16,590 (5,693)
4511 4,046
(15,180) (9,792)
(2,653) -
- 2,842
7,578 -
(10,763) -
(4,168) 5,946
13,263 (386)
321 640
9,499 (2,397)
17,833 9,792
39,608 356
3,611 -
(2,386) (3,632)
4,581 31,452
(46,042) (6,024)
(28,845) -

(27) -

- 16
(11,667) 31,960
(17,410) 16,204

(237) 937
4 (2
26 (56)
(774) (472)
(18,399) 16,611
(20,567) 46,174
(227) -
(105,217) (1,269)
(105,444) (1,269)
(126,011) 44,905
115,743 67,659
4 57,906 115,743
Directo




KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

2.1

2.2

2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

KASB Asset Allocation Fund (“the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed executed between KASB Funds Limited
(KFL) as Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The
Trust Deed was executed on October 25, 2007 and was approved by The Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) on November 26, 2007 in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). The Fund has been assigned 'Asset Allocation' category under the
categorisation criteria issued by the SECP.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to undertake asset management and investment advisory
services as Non-Banking Finance Company under the NBFC Rules issued by the SECP. The registered office of the
Management Company is situated at 9th Floor, Trade Centre, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The JCR-VIS
has assigned management quality rating of AM3 to the Management Company and Pakistan Credit Rating Agency
Limited (PACRA) has assigned short term and long term ranking of 2 star to the Fund.

The Fund is an open end fund and is listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited. Units are offered for public
subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund
at the option of the unit holder.

The objective of the Fund is to generate a positive return and long term capital appreciation for unit holders by
investing in both the Equity and Debt markets.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of CDC as the trustee of the Fund.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the
requirements of the Trust Deed, the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003
(the NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Regulations) and directives issued by the SECP. Wherever the requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the
NBFC Regulations or directives issued by the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the
Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP prevail.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in
the current year

The following amendments to approved accounting standards have been published and are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting period beginning on or after July 1, 2012 :

- IAS 1, 'Financial statement presentation’. The main change resulting from these amendments is a requirement
for entities to group items presented in 'other comprehensive income' (OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not
address which items are presented in OCI. The effect of this ammendment has been incorporated in these
financial statements.

There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning
July 1, 2012 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Fund's operations and
are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2013 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Fund's operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
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2.5

2.6

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting policies.
The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions are based on the management's experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and
future years. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Fund's financial statements or
where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies principally relate to classification and valuation of
investments (note 3.1 and note 5).

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain financial
assets have been carried at fair value in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS)
39: 'Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement.'

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's
functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Financial assets

Classification

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These are financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in
market prices, interest rate movements or are financial assets included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term
profit taking exists.

b) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

c) Held to maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Fund has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity.

d) Available for sale

These are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

Subsequent measurement
a) Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale'

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets designated by the management as at fair value through profit or loss
and available for sale are valued as follows:

- Basis of valuation of equity securities

The fair value of a security listed on a stock exchange, local or foreign as the case may be, and derivatives is valued at
its last sale price on such exchange on the date on which it is valued or if such exchange is not open on such date,
then at its last sale price on the next preceding date on which such exchange was open and if no sale is reported for
such date, the security is valued at an amount neither higher than the closing ask price nor lower than the closing bid
price.

- Basis of valuation of debt securities

The investment of the Fund in debt securities is valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Fund
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology prescribed by SECP for valuation of debt
securities vide its circular no. 1 of 2009 dated January 6, 2009, circular no.33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 and
circular no. 35 of 2012 dated November 26, 2012. In the determination of the rates MUFAP takes into account the
holding pattern of these securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The
circular also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning
of non-performing debt securities.

- Basis of valuation of government securities

The investment of the Fund in government securities is subsequently stated at fair value which is determined on the
basis of rates announced by the Financial Market Association of Pakistan in accordance with the requirements of the
NBFC Regulations, 2008.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
taken to the income statement.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'available for sale' financial assets are recognised as 'other
comprehensive income' in the statement of comprehensive income until these are derecognised or impaired. At this
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised as 'other comprehensive income' is transferred to the income
statement as capital gain / (loss).

b) Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Gain or loss is also recognised in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortised cost are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Transactions of purchase under Margin Trading System (MTS) of marketable securities are entered into at contracted
rates for specified periods of time. Securities purchased under MTS are not recognised in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities. However, the amount paid under these agreements are recognised as receivable in respect of MTS. Profit
is recognised on accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. Cash releases are adjusted against the
receivable as reduction in the amount of receivable. The maximum maturity of a MTS contract is 44 working days out
of which 25 percent exposure is automatically released at expiry of every 15th day from the day of contract.

c) Held to maturity

These investments are subsequently carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any.
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3.1.6

3.1.7

3.2

3.3

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Fund's assets are revalued at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment in any asset or group of assets. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets
is estimated and impairment losses are recognised immediately as an expense in the income statement. If any
impairment evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement.

a) Debt securities

Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time based criteria as prescribed under circular
no. 1 of 2009 dated January 6, 2009, circular no.33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 and circular no. 35 of 2012 dated
November 26, 2012, issued by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be reversed through
the 'Income Statement'.

As allowed under circular no. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012, issued by the SECP, the management may also
make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum provision requirement prescribed in the aforesaid
circular, in accordance with a provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors.

b) Equity securities

For equity securities classified as 'available for sale', a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered, amongst other indicators, as an indicator that the security is impaired. If any such
evidence exists for 'available for sale' financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
'income statement' is reclassified from 'unit holders' fund' to 'income statement'. Impairment losses recognised on
equity instruments are not reversed through the 'income statement'.

c) Loans and receivables

For financial assets classified as loans and receivables, a provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount
of the provision is determined based on the provisioning criteria specified by the SECP.

d) Held to maturity

For financial assets classified as held to maturity, a provision for impairment is established when there is objective
evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired, have
been realised or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of deposits accounts maintained with banks. Cash equivalents are short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investments
and other purposes. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at cost.

Other Assets

Other Assets are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative
instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the Provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the
Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax losses to the extent that that these will be available for set off
against future taxable profits. However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of deferred tax in these
financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least
ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its
unit holders every year.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received by
the distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit as of the
close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision for duties
and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the investment facilitators, distributors and the Management
Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemption
requests during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value per unit as of the
close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for
transaction costs, if applicable.

Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed

An equalisation account called the "element of income / (loss) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed" is created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out on
redemption.

The "element of income/ (loss) and capital gains/ (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed to the extent that it is represented by income earned during the year is recognised in the income statement
and to the extent that it is represented by unrealised appreciation / (diminution) arising during the year on available for
sale securities is included in the distribution statement.



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

4.1

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets (one that takes substantial period of time to
get ready for use or sale) are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are taken to the
income statement in the period in which they are incurred. Currently the Fund does not have any qualifying assets.

Revenue recognition
- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the 'income statement' on the date
at which the transaction takes place.

- Income on debt securities is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Unrealised capital gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss ' are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Income on market treasury bills is recognised on effective interest rate basis.

- Profit on bank deposits is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Income on MTS transactions is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Income on placements is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Income on issue and repurchase of units is recognised when the units are issued and redeemed at the
transaction date.

Expenses

All expenses including Management fee, Trustee fee and the SECP annual fee are recognised in the Income
Statement on an accrual basis.

Net asset value per unit

The net asset value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, is calculated by dividing
the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of operations of

the Fund. These costs are amortised over a period of five years in accordance with the requirements set out in the
Trust Deed of the Fund and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

Note 2013 2012
BALANCES WITH BANKS (Rupees in '000)
In saving account 4.1 57,906 115,743

This saving account carries mark-up at the rate of 8.5% per annum (2012: 10.5% per annum).

INVESTMENTS Note 2013 2012
(Rupees in '000)

'At fair value through profit or loss'

Held for trading

- Quoted equity securities 5.1 221,239 214,389

Designated on initial recognition

- Fixed income and other debt securities 5.2 13,422 -

- Advance against Pre Initial Public Offer investments 5.3 - -
13,422 -

'Available for sale'

- Fixed income and other debt securities 5.4 20,278 29,999

- Un-quoted equity securities 55 10,680 -

265,619 244,388
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Quoted equity securities - ‘at fair value through profit or loss' - held for trading

Normber of shares Balance 55 a1 June 30,7073
Warket | Market [7S10eT120¢
of paidup
alue s vlue a5 2| TP
Name of investee company. Note | s at uly 1, 2012 Purchased during the year Bonus/ rights issue Sold during the year As at June 30, 2013 Canying value Market value Appre-ciation! (dimin-tior) reentagefpereeniate imesiee
company
assets[investment| 7P
“Rupees n G0~
- Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless otherwise stated
Chemicals
Daviood Hercules Corporation Limitec - 53872 53872 - - - T 000%  000%  000%
Engro Corporation Limited 35,000 541,858 501,858 75,000 10,158 9140 (L018) 271%  348%  001%
Falima Fertiizer Company Limited 203245 187,000 480245 - - - -~ 000%  000%  000%
Faui Fertiizer Bin Qasim Limited 30,500 39,500 - - - - 000%  000%  000%
Faji Fetiizer Company Limited - 357,700 205,000 152,700 17.225 16,405 820) 487% 68%  001%
28 1,659,930 1760475 227,700 21,383 25545 1838) 758%
Commercial Banks
Askari Bank Limited B0 - 325000 TO0%  0.00%  000%
Bank Al-Habib Limited 262422 10,000 212422 000%  0.00%  0.00%
MCB Bank Limited 134070 12500 - 146570 - - - - 000%  000%  000%
National Bank Of Pakistan 37500 455,000 4215 386,775 110000 4763 4523 (40) 136% 170%  001%
NIB Bank Liied 300000 - - 300,000 - - - -~ 000%  000%  000%
Sikbank Limited 616503 - 616503 000%  0.00%  0.00%
United Bank Limited - 76,500 - 76,500 - - - 000%  0.00% 0.00%
T675.4% 554,000 1275 2123770 110000 3763 [ @) 13m%
Construction and Materials (Cement)
Attock Cement (Pakistan) Limited 0,000 - 0,000 - - - TO0%  000%  000%
Cherat Cement Company Limitec E 376,000 207,500 168,500 10,239 9805 @36) 291% 36%  0.18%
Devian Cement Limited 1217500 1217500 - E - 000%  0.00%  0.00%
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limitec 549,000 549,000 000%  0.00%  0.00%
Fauj Cement Company Limited 937,500 937,500 - - - 000%  0.00%  0.00%
Fecto Cement Limited - 268,000 61500 206,500 9745 9914 169 204% 373%  041%
Kohat Cement Limited 73500 817,500 606,000 285,000 23652 20,462 80 726% 921%  022%
Lucky Cement Limited 227455 42,000 269,455 - - - 000%  0.00%  0.00%
Maple Leat Cement Factory Limited - 3290000 3140000 150000 3285 3290 5 08%  124%  00%%
31095 7,497,500 6,998,455 810,000 6021 [ 0 14.00%
Electricity
Hub Power Company Limited 000 39500 4500 TO0%  0.00%  000%
Kot Addu Powier Company Liited - 125,000 125,000 - - - 000%  0.00%  0.00%
Nishat Chunian Power Limited 98,000 30,000 138,000 261,000 8608 8631 23 256% 325%  0.07%
PAKGEN Power Limited 511 - 1552.500 896,500 656,000 16,458 16,092 47T%  606%  0.8%
43000 2378,000 1,604,000 917,000 25,066 %723 [EORED
Equity Investment Instruments
First Dawood Mutual Fund 51 z| 309,500 309,500 TO0%  0.00%  000%
Namco Balance Fund 5000 5000 000%  0.00%  0.00%
T404,500 T404,500 0.00%
Financial Services
Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited | - 16500 16500 TO0%  0.00%  000%
Next Capital Limited 250,000 - 250,000 000%  0.00%  0.00%
250,000 16500 566,500 0.00%
Leasing Companies
SME Leasing [ 504575 504575 7958 395 (028 117%  148% 18% |
804575 804575 3958 39%0 1028 117%
Fixed Line
Palistan Telecommunication Company Limied | 695,500 60000 035,500 7205 72078 @27 66%  865%  003%
Telecard Limied 1740000 1,740,000 - - - - 000%  000%  000%
3.435,500 2,400,000 035,500 75205 72078 @ 68
Food Producers
Engro Foods Limited [ 306402 30,000 [EXA TO0% __0.00% __0.00%
396,402 20,000 136,402 0.00%
Industrial metals and Mining
Aisha Steel Mils Limited [ 49,600 49,600 TO0% __0.00% __0.00%
149,600 149,600 0.00%
Oil and Gas
Altock Refinery Limited 130100 2700 87,400 7206 T5.081 @15 44T%  568%  010%
Mari Petroleum Company Limited - 97,000 63,000 34,000 5274 4643 (63) 138% 175%  0.04%
Natonal Refinery Limied 62572 62572 - - - 000%  000%  0.00%
O and Gas Development Company Limited 100467 168,600 176067 113000 27,128 25,849 (L879) 7676 97  0.00%
Palistan Oifields Limied 68,814 96,000 - 130314 34500 17641 17,150 (B2) 50%  646%  0.01%
Palistan Petroleu Limited 89,146 131300 22,286 202732 40,000 8827 8463 (34) 250% 31%  0.00%
Palistan State Ol Company Lirited 99,427 72,000 7,600 165027 24,000 7705 7689 228%  289%  001%
720426 715,000 79,886 832412 332900 84381 78,884 G497 2340%
Personal Goods (Textile)
Azgard Nine Limited 80000 - 80000 3570 3053 %) 090%  11%  01l%
Kohinoor Texie Mils Limited - 898,500 290,000 608,500 9,760 10,132 32 301%  381%  29%%
Nishat Mils Limited 55500 162,000 217,500 - - - - 000%  000%  000%
55500 1540500 507,500 1088500 5330 .16 8 392%
5126175 730016 221250 [ERED)
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Investments include quoted equity securities with market value as at June 30, 2013 aggregating to Rs. 9.812 million
which have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited for guaranteeing settlement of the
Fund's trades in terms of Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

These shares were de-listed and traded at Rs 7 each prior to de-listing. Subsequently, the Fund has received Rs
9.32 million against the said investment i.e. Rs 6.72 per share. The remaining Rs 0.28 per share remain payable to
the Fund. Management taking a conservative view has not recorded a debtor of Rs.0.39 million representing the
outstanding amount. Out of the total number of shares disposed, 11,000 shares were disposed prior to the de-listing
and at the market rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Fixed income and other debt securities - designated as 'at fair value through profit or loss' on initial
recognition

Market /
Sales Market / .
As at Purchases durin As at carrying value carrying value
Name of the investee company Note July 1, during the 9 June 30, ying as a percentage
the as at June 30,
2012 year 2013 of total
year 2013 .
investments
--------- (Number of certificates) ---------
Term Finance Certificates
Agritech Limited - Il 5.2.1 1,000 - - 1,000 - -
Agritech Limited - V 5.2.1 148 - - 148 - -
Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited - \ - 2,500 - 2,500 6,239 2.35
6,239
Sukuk Certificates
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited - 522 160,000 - - 160,000 - -
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - | 523 - 5,000 - 5,000 7,183 2.70
13,422

This represents term finance certificates of Agritech Limited (AL). The investment in AL is secured against
collaterals. On July 14, 2010, owing to financial difficulties, AL only paid profit amounting to Rs. 2.462 million and
defaulted on payment of principal amounting to Rs. 3.497 million. The Fund has recognised full provision against this
investment in light of the provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company and applicable SECP circulars. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's exposure to this
investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount. On January 9, 2012, AL has issued term
finance certificates carrying profit at the rate of 11% per annum against its defaulted coupon. The Fund has carried
such term finance certificates at nil value.

The above provision is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and
unrecognised mark-up and other charges etc.

This represents sukuk certificates of New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited (NAEIL). The investment in
NAEIL is secured against collaterals. On October 25, 2008, owing to financial difficulties, NAEIL only paid profit
amounting to Rs. 2.113 million and defaulted on repayment of principal amounting to Rs. 3.125 million. The Fund
has recognised full provision and has suspended accruals of profit thereagainst in light of the provisioning policy of
the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company and applicable SECP circulars.
Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for
the recovery of the amount.

The above provision is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company for the entire exposure and
unrecognised mark-up and other charges etc.

This represents investment in sukuk certificates of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL) purchased during
the year on April 12, 2013. These certificates were originally classified as non-performing on September 19, 2011.
Management of the Fund believes purchase of these sukuk certificates to be in the best interest of the unitholders of
the Fund, considering that MLCFL could be a turnaround company as MLCFL has been consistently paying the debt
to sukuk holders for the last one year and it is expected to become performing in upcoming months. Taking in view
the current classification of MLCFL sukuk certificates as non-performing and in light of provisioning policy of the
Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company and applicable SECP circulars the Fund
has recognised an unrealised loss amounting to Rs. 7.81 million against its investment in these sukuk certificates
and has not recognised any accrual of mark-up thereagainst. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's
exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for the recovery of the amount.
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Advance against Pre Initial Public Offer investments - designated as 'at fair value through profit or loss' on
initial recognition.

As at Purchases dsuarliis As at Carrying a(;a;ry;ge\ﬁgjee
Name of the investee company Note July 1, during the theg June 30, value as at gf total 9
2012 year 2013 June 30, 2013| .
year investments
--------- (Number of certificates) --------- Rupees in '000s
Dewan Cement Limited 53.1 10,000 - - 10,000 - -

This represents investment of Rs. 50 million as advance against issue of term finance certificates of Dewan Cement
Limited (DCL). The investment in DCL is secured against collaterals. In view of default by the borrower, the Fund
has recognised full provision against the said investment and has suspended accrual of markup thereagainst in light
of the provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's exposure to this investment and is making necessary efforts for
the recovery of the amount. The above provision is without prejudice to the Fund's claim against the above company

for the entire exposure and unrecognised mark-up and other charges etc.

Fixed income and other debt securities - 'available for sale'

Sales Market Market
As at Purchases durin As at value as at value as a
Name of the investee company Note July 1, during the 9 June 30, percentage
the June 30,
2012 year 2013 of total
year 2013 .
investments
————————— (Number of certificates) ------—-- Rupees in '000s
Term Finance Certificates
Agritech Limited - Il 5.2.1 6,000 - - 6,000 - -
Agritech Limited - V 5.2.1 887 - - 887 - -
Sukuk Certificates
Security Leasing Corporation Limitec 5.4.1 9,500 - - 9,500 8,524 3.21
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - | 5.4.2 7,400 1,800 1,000 8,200 11,754 4.43
20,278

These sukuk certificates were restructured in March 2011. According to the restructuring terms, Security Leasing
Corporation Limited (SLCL) will not pay mark-up, however, payment of principal will continue according to the
previous terms. These certificates are secured against registered charge over specific leased assets and associated
lease receivables with 25% security margin and will mature on January 19, 2022. The Fund had recognised a
provision of Rs. 4.5 million in respect of these certificates during the year ended June 30, 2012.

This represents investment is sukuk certificates of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL). The Fund had
purchased 7,400 sukuk certificates during the year ended June 30, 2012 from another Fund under common
management at a mutually agreed rate. These certificates were classified as non-performing by MUFAP on
September 19, 2011.

During the year the Fund has traded into sukuk certificates of MLCFL by purchasing 1,800 certificates on December
13, 2012 and selling off 1,000 certificates on February 20, 2013. Management of the Fund believes purchase of
additional 800 sukuk certificates is in the best interest of the unitholders of the Fund, considering that MLCFL could
be a turnaround company as MLCFL has been consistently paying the debt to sukuk holders for the last one year
and it is expected to become performing in upcoming months. Taking in view the current classification of MLCFL
sukuk certificates as non-performing and in light of the provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company and applicable SECP circulars the Fund has recognised a provision
amounting to Rs. 4.5 million (2012: Rs.4.05 million ) against its investment in these sukuk certificates and has not
recognised any accrual of mark-up thereagainst. Management is continuously monitoring the Fund's exposure to this
investment and is making necessary efforts for recovery of the amount.

Note 2013 2012
Un-quoted equity securities - 'available for sale’ (Rupees in '000)
Burj Bank Limited 55.1 10,680 -

During the year the Fund has received 1,333,333 shares of Burj Bank Limited in settlement of the amount due
against placement as further explained in note 17 to these financial statements. As per regulation 66(j) of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, these have been recorded at the break-up
value as per the latest audited financial statements of the bank.
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Significant terms and conditions of term finance and sukuk certificates

Significant terms and conditions of Term Finance Certificates outstanding as at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

. Rer.na|.n|ng Mark-up rate Issue Maturity
Name of security principal
(per TFC) (per annum) date date

Agritech Limited - Il 4,996.80 Defaulted 14-Jan-08 Defaulted
Agritech Limited - V 5,000.00 Defaulted 1-Jul-11 Defaulted
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited - | 312.50 Defaulted 27-Jul-07 Defaulted
Security Leasing Corporation Limited 1,452.91 Nil 1-Jun-07 19-Jan-22
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - | 4,489.40 Defaulted 3-Dec-07 Defaulted
Jahangir Siddiqui Company Limited - V 2,495.00 6 months K + 1.7% 4-Jul-07 4-Jul-13

The Fund has stopped accruing markup on defaulted debt instruments and believes there is no guaranteed maturity
date of the same.

Details of non-compliant investment with the investment criteria as specified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular no. 7 of 2009 dated March 6, 2009, required all
Asset Management Companies to classify funds under their management on the basis of categorisation criteria laid
down in the circular. The Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved the category of the fund as
an "Asset Allocation Scheme", in accordance with the said Circular. However, as at June 30, 2013 the Fund is non-
compliant with the aforementioned requirement due to the holding of unlisted DHA Golf Club membership cards, as
further explained in note 7.

Value of
assets Provision Value of Percentage of Percentage
Name of non-compliant asset Name of Company . assets after 9 9
before held, if any - net assets of gross assets
. provision
provision
---------------- (Rupees in 000) -----------------
Other Assets
DHA Golf Club membership cards Defence Authority 28,845 7,578 21,267 6.31 6.04
Country & Golf Club
2013 2012
Net unrealised (diminution) / appreciation in fair value of investments (Rupees in '000)
classified as 'available for sale'
Fair value of investments 30,958 29,999
Less: cost of investments (67,705) (58,525)
(36,747) (28,526)
Net unrealised diminution in fair value of investments classified as
‘available for sale' at beginning of the year 28,526 30,026
Provision against non-performing ‘available for sale' investments 4,511 4,046
33,037 34,072
(3,710) 5,546
Movement in provision against debt securities
Opening balance 95,062 91,016
Provision against non-performing investment classified as
‘at fair value through profit or loss' during the year - -
Provision against non-performing investments classified as
‘available for sale' during the year 4,511 4,046
4,511 4,046
Closing balance 99,573 95,062

LENDING UNDER MARGIN TRADING SYSTEM

This represents amount receivable against Margin Trading System and carries profit ranging between 12% to 17%
per annum and will mature at the option of financee subject to a maximum of 44 working days.

CERTIFICATES OF INVESTMENT (COl)

The Fund invested Rs. 50 million with Al-Zamin Leasing Corporation Limited (Al-Zamin) via two different Certificates
of Investment (COI) of Rs. 25 million each on February 2, 2008 and August 7, 2008 respectively. COI placed on
February 2, 2008 was rolled over for a period of 6 months upon maturity on August 11, 2008. Partial payment was
made on maturity of COI placed on August 7, 2008 and the remaining amount was rolled over for a further 90 days.
Subsequently, the investment in these COls was merged and some more partial principal payments were made by
Al-Zamin.
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Al-Zamin was later merged with and into InvestCap Investment Bank Limited (ICIB) with all the assets, liabilities,
commitments and obligations of Al-Zamin being transferred to and taken over by ICIB being the surviving entity of the
said merger.

Due to the continuous delays in payments, the Fund recognised a provision of Rs 7.9 million and Rs 2.8 million during
the year ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012 respectively and suspended accrual of markup in line with the
provisioning policy of the Fund which was duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company. The
carrying value of the investment in the Fund was Rs. 28.8 million as at June 30, 2012.

On November 27, 2012 KASB Funds Limited (KFL) entered into a settlement agreement with ICIB, whereby it was
agreed by the borrower to settle its total outstanding balance towards the Fund and KASB Income Opportunity Fund
(KIOF), fund under common management, against 27 platinum membership cards of the Defence Housing Authority
(DHA) Golf Club. Balances of Rs 39.6 million and Rs 10.3 million were outstanding to the Fund and KIOF, respectively.

CDC, the trustee of the Fund, vide its letter no CDC/T&C-UI/DH/0022/2013 dated January 21, 2013 granted consent
on the above settlement subject to the approval of the SECP and conditions defined hereinafter:

a. Membership cards shall not be valued at the price more than the gold card price published / disclosed on the
website of DHA Golf Club or shall be valued at any other price / criteria that SECP may allow;

b.  Any change in the valuation or provisioning on these membership cards will be first approved by the SECP under
intimation to us;

c. KASB Funds Limited shall make active efforts to sell these membership cards at the earliest in the best interests
of the Unit Holders and share with us a detailed sale plan alongwith its execution timeline;

d. KASB Funds Limited shall disclose the book value and market value in the published accounts of the Funds and
shall give a detailed disclosure regarding this agreement in its financial statements.

Subsequently, the SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/KAAF/417/2013 dated February 19, 2013 conveyed its no-
objection in relation to the above mentioned settlement subject to the following conditions:

i Membership cards shall not be valued more than gold card price published / disclosed on the website of DHA
Gold Club;

ii.  Any change in the valuation or provisioning on those membership cards will be first approved by the SECP.
iii. KASB Funds Limited shall liquidate the said cards within three months of the date of this letter;

iv. KASB Funds Limited shall disclose the book value and the market value in the published accounts of the funds
and shall give a detailed disclosure regarding this arrangement in its financial statements.

Based on the price of a gold card as per DHA Golf Club’s website of Rs 1.35 million and the proportion of the
outstanding amount between the two funds, an amount of Rs. 28.8 million was settled against the Fund’s investment.
Provision of Rs.10.76 million made in prior years against this investment has been written off during the current year.

On May 17, 2013 the management company requested an extension in respect of condition (iii) placed by the SECP in
its letter dated February 19, 2013 as mentioned above. The SECP vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/KAAF/569/2013
dated June 3, 2013 conveyed that the request made by the management had not been acceded to.

Subsequent to the year end and announcement of distribution, the management company vide its letter no.
KFL/SMN/1307/3 dated July 19, 2013 has apprised the SECP with respect to its efforts for selling such cards and
further informed that taking a cautious approach the investment committee has decided to make a provision against
the valuation of these cards, valuing them at Rs 1 million each.

After further deliberations, the Fund recognised the said provision amounting to Rs. 7.578 million against its share of
cards on June 30, 2013. The management company has not obtained prior SECP approval against such provision as
required under the SECP letter dated February 19, 2013 and has admitted the said fact in its aforementioned
intimation letter to the SECP. The provision has resulted in the profit for the year being less than the amount distributec
to the unit holders. Furthermore, the NAV per unit announced by the Fund is different from that reported in these
financial statements, as shown in 7.1 below.

Reconciliation between net assets announced at year end June 30, 2013 and net assets value reported in
these financial statements

Net assets Net assets
value value per unit
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees)

Net Assets Value announced by the Fund as on June 30, 2013 344,698 48.74
Less: provision against DHA Golf Club Platinum Membership Cards (7,578) (2.07)

Net Assets Value as disclosed in these financial statements 337,120 47.67




9.1

9.2

10

11

11.1

11.2

12

121

12

Note 2013 2012

DIVIDEND AND INCOME RECEIVABLE (Rupees in '000)
Dividend receivable 173 116
Income accrued on bank deposits 741 1,525
Income accrued on lending under Margin Trading System - 38
Income accrued on term finance and sukuk certificates 352 -

1,266 1,679
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 9.1 2,750 2,750
Deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 9.2 100 100
Prepaid fee - National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 233 206

3,083 3,056

This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited in respect of trading of listed securities.

This represents deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited on account of initial deposit for opening
of investor account for electronic transfer of book-entry securities.

Note 2013 2012

PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS (Rupees in '000)
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 321 961
Less: Amortisation during the year (321) (640)

- 321
PAYABLE TO KASB FUNDS LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management fee payable 111 568 835
Sindh Sales Tax payable on management fee 99 134
Federal Excise Duty payable on management fee 11.2 55 -
Sales load 10 -

732 969

Under the provisions of the Non Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, the Management Company of the Fund is entitled
to a remuneration during the first five years of the Fund, of an amount not exceeding three percent per annum of the
average annual net assets of the Fund and thereafter of an amount equal to two percent per annum of such assets of
the Fund. In the current year, remuneration of the Management company has been charged at the rate of two percent
of the average annual net assets of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Management Company on a monthly
basis in arrears.

During the current year, the Federal Government has levied Federal Excise Duty at the rate of 16% on the
remuneration of the Management Company through the Finance Act, 2013 effective from June 13, 2013.

Note 2013 2012
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF (Rupees in '000)
PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE
Remuneration payable 12.1 59 60
CDS charges payable - 3
59 63

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid on a monthly basis in
arrears.

Based on the Trust Deed, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund as at June 30, 2013 is as follows:
Net Assets Tariff per annum

Upto Rs 1,000 million Rs 0.7 million or 0.2% per annum of NAV, whichever is higher
On an amount exceeding Rs 1,000 million  Rs 2.0 million plus 0.1% per annum of NAV exceeding Rs 1,000 million
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Note 2013 2012
PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (Rupees in '000)
OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee 13.1 352 326

The Fund has been categorised as an Asset Allocation Scheme by the Management Company. Under the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations, a collective investment scheme categorised as an Asset Allocation Scheme is required to pay
an annual fee to the SECP at an amount equal to 0.095 percent of the average annual net assets of the Fund.

Note 2013 2012

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Rupees in '000)
Auditors' remuneration payable 382 335
Legal and professional charges payable 221 210
Credit rating fee payable 107 110
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 15.1 627 627
Others 159 988

1,496 2,270

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance).
As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective Investment Schemes / Mutual Funds (CISs) /
Pension Funds whose income exceeds Rs. 0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought within the scope of the WWF
Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or
taxable income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a Constitutional Petition has been filed by certain CISs through their
trustees in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC), challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs / Pension
Funds, which is pending adjudication.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, a clarification was issued by the Ministry of Labour and Manpower (the Ministry)
on July 8, 2010 which stated that mutual funds are not liable to contribute to WWF on the basis of their income.
However on December 14, 2010 the Ministry filed its response against the Constitutional Petition requesting the Court
to dismiss the same. This response was contradictory to the earlier clarification issued by the Ministry. Show cause
notices were then issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) to several mutual funds (CISs) / pension funds for
the collection of WWF. In respect of such show cause notices, certain mutual funds (CISs) / pension funds have been
granted stay by the Honourable SHC on the basis of the pending Constitutional Petition as referred to above.

In March 2013, a three member bench of the Sindh High Court in its judgment on various Constitutional Petitions
challenging the amendments brought in the WWF Ordinance, 1971 through the Finance Act, 2006, and the Finance
Act, 2008, held that WWF is a tax and consequently, the amendments introduced in the Workers’ Welfare Fund
Ordinance, 1971 through the Finance Act, 2006 and 2008 respectively (Money Bills) do not suffer from any
constitutional or legal infirmity. This judgment was in contrast to the July 2011 single member bench decision of the
Honourable Lahore High Court which had held such amendments as unlawful and unconstitutional for the reason that
they were made through the money bills. For the CISs and pension funds, the issue of chargeability or otherwise of
WWEF levy to the CISs / pension funds is currently pending before the Honourable SHC.

Owing to uncertainty regarding applicability of WWF on the Fund, the Management Company has suspended further
accrual of the charge pertaining to the period from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2013 and as a matter of abundant caution
has not reversed the earlier charge amounting to Rs. 0.627 million recognised till June 30, 2010. The aggregate
unrecognised amount of WWF as at June 30, 2013 amounts to Rs 1.43 million. Had the provision been recognised, the
net asset value per unit as at June 30, 2013 would have been lower by Rs 0.20.

There were no other contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012.

2013 2012
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE (Units)
Total outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,363,152 9,397,631
Sales during the year 113,656 222,246
Bonus units issued 2,598 -
Redemption during the year (2,406,913) (256,725)

Total units in issue at the end of the year 7,072,493 9,363,152
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The units in issue as at June 30 for each class:

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Units) (Rupees in '000)
Type 'A’ Units 7,072,493 2,147,708 337,120 83,686
Type 'B' Units - 7,215,444 - 281,151
7,072,493 9,363,152 337,120 364,837

In accordance with clause 6.2.1.2 of the offering document, the Management Company had issued type 'B' units to the
core investors. The Management Company offered a special rebate on the management fee to type 'B' units. The
management discontinued such practice from June 11, 2012 in compliance with the Circular 20 of 2012 issued by the
SECP prohibiting the sharing of management fee in any form with unit holders.

REVERSAL OF PROVISIONING AGAINST NON-PERFORMING PLACEMENTS

On August 26, 2008 the Fund had invested an amount of Rs. 50 million in letter of placement with Saudi Pak Leasing
Company Limited (SPLCL) out of which Rs. 19 million was repaid by the borrower on various dates. Owing to
continuous defaults in repayment of remaining principal by SPLCL, the Fund had recognised a full provision against the
outstanding principal amounting to Rs. 31 million in light of the provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the Management Company.

On December 28, 2011 KASB Funds Limited (KFL), being the management company entered into a settlement
agreement with SPLCL as per which SPLCL agreed to discharge its liability to the extent of Rs. 127.5 million against an
amount of Rs. 36.8 due to the Fund and an amount of Rs. 102 million due to KASB Income Opportunity Fund (KIOF), a
fund under the common management.

Central Depository Company (CDC) being the trustee of the funds, vide its letter no. CDC/T&C-UI/DH/0215/2011 dated
July 15, 2011 conveyed its no objection to the SECP at their request. Subsequently the SECP vide its letter no.
SCD/AMCW/MF/DD-ZRK/KLF/340/2011 dated July 26, 2011 conveyed its no-objection to the settlement proposal
which was subsequently finalised.

As per the agreement SPLCL, amongst transfer of other assets, agreed to pay Rs. 23.085 million in cash to both the
funds. Out of this amount Rs. 3.085 million was paid as a down payment within fifteen days from the date of signing of
the agreement, Rs. 1 million each in January and February 2012 and the remainder as monthly instalments amounting
to Rs. 750,000 each. Out of the initial down payment Rs. 1,516,900 was deemed payable against the amount due to
the Fund. The subsequent payments have been equally distributed between the Fund and KIOF.

During the year ended June 30, 2012 the Fund had received cash amounting to Rs. 3.64 million and shares of Silk
Bank Limited, NIB Bank Limited and SME Leasing Limited, amounting to Rs. 6.15 million as per the agreement and an
addendum dated February 13, 2012. The Fund recognised a reversal of earlier provision to the extent of Rs. 9.79
million in respect of the above.

During the year ended June 30, 2013 the Fund has received cash amounting to Rs 4.5 million as per the settlement
agreement. As per the settlement agreement and the second addendum dated September 25, 2012 the Fund has also
received 1,333,333 shares of Burj Bank Limited. This being an unlisted security was deemed as a prohibited
investment as per the NBFC regulations and the Fund’s constitutive document. However, as mentioned above, the
settlement received no- objection from both the SECP and the trustee. Furthermore, the State Bank of Pakistan vide its
letter no BPRD (RPD-01)/2013-866 dated January 22, 2013 also conveyed its no-objection to CDC permitting the
unblocking of the said number of shares and their subsequent transfer to the CDC account of the Fund held by the
trustee. As mentioned in note 5.5 these shares have been recorded at Rs. 8.01 per share being the break up value as
per the latest audited financial statements of the bank, in accordance with Regulation 66 (j) of the Non Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

During the year the Fund has written off an amount of Rs 2.653 million which was already provided for in prior years as
being the unreceived amount from SPLCL. According to the settlement agreement an amount of Rs 3.375 million is
expected to be received in cash during the forthcoming period. This will be reversed accordingly on receipt.

2013 2012
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION (Rupees in '000)
Audit fee 300 275
Half yearly review 110 80
Other certifications and services 85 60
Out of pocket expense 53 44

548 459
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EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per Unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted
average number of units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from Income Tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as
reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst the unit holders. The Fund has not
recorded a provision for taxation in respect of income relating to the current year as subsequent to the year end the
Management Company has distributed the required minimum percentage of the Fund's accounting income for the
year as reduced by capital gains (whether realised or unrealised) to its unit holders as detailed in note 26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY e As at June 30, 2013 -----
Financial assets
Available for Sale at fair value Loaps and
through profit or receivables
loss
————————————————————————————————— Rupees in '000 ----------m---mmemmmomemeeeeeee
Assets
Balances with banks - - 57,906
Investments 30,958 234,661 -
Receivable against lending under margin trading system - - 21
Certificates of investment - - -
Receivable against sale of investments - - 2,798
Dividend and income receivable - - 1,266
Other assets - - 21,267
Deposits and prepayments - - 3,083
30,958 234,661 86,341
————— As at June_ 30, 2013 -----
Liabilities at fair Other financial
value through R
profit or loss liabilities
-- Rupees in '000 ----
Liabilities
Payable against purchase of investments - 12,201
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company - 732
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 59
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 869
- 13,861
----- As at June 30, 2012 -----
Financial assets
Available for Sale at fair value Loaps and
through profit or receivables
loss
————————————————————————————————— Rupees in '000 --------------mmemmmommeeeee e
Assets
Balances with banks - - 115,743
Investments 29,999 214,389 -
Receivable against lending under margin trading system - - 3,632
Certificates of investment - - 28,845
Receivable against sale of investments - - 412
Dividend and income receivable - - 1,679
Other assets - - -
Deposits and prepayments - - 3,056
29,999 214,389 153,367
————— As at June_ 30, 2012 -----
Liabilities at fair Other financial
value through R
profit or loss liabilities
------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------
Liabilities
Payable against purchase of investments - 29,611
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company - 969
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 63
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 1,643
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Related parties / connected persons include KASB Funds Limited being the Management Company, its related
entities, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee of the Fund, other Funds managed by the
Management Company and directors, key management personnel and officers of the Management Company, and unit
holders having more than 10% holding in the Fund.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and
terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions
of NBFC Regulations, 2008, and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of transactions with related parties / connected persons and balances with them at year end are as follows:

Note 2013 2012
(Rupees in '000)
Transactions with related parties / connected persons during the year

KASB Funds Limited

Remuneration for the year 9,323 10,297
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration 1,514 1,347
Federal Excise Duty on remuneration 55 -

KASB Bank Limited

Bank charges 5 9
Profit on bank deposit 224 5,395 12,235
Additional units: Nil units (2012: 35,514 units) - 1,299
KASB Securities Limited

Brokerage expense 22.3 218 118
KASB Islamic Income Opportunity Fund

Purchase of sukuk certificates: Nil units (2012: 7,678 units) - 27,530
Crosby Phoenix Fund

Purchase of JSCL TFCs: 2500 units (2012: Nil units) 12,517 -
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration for the year 748 700
CDS charges 69 40
KASB Modaraba

Purchase of Certificates of Musharika: 900,000 units (2012: Nil units) 90,000 -
Maturities of Certificates of Musharika: 900,000 units (2012: Nil units) 90,000

Income on Certificates of Musharika 2,275 -

Balances with related parties / connected persons at year end:

KASB Funds Limited - Management Company

Management fee payable 568 835
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of management company 99 134
FED on remuneration of management company 55 -
Sales load payable 10 -
KASB Bank Limited

Bank balance 57,891 115,743
Profit receivable on bank deposits 742 1,525
Units held: 6,473,552 units (2012: 6,473,552 units) 315,506 252,243

KASB Securities Limited
Brokerage payable 30 27

Central Depository Company of Pakistan

Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable 59 63
CDS Charges payable - 3
Security deposit 100 100
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The amount disclosed represents the amount of brokerage paid to connected person and not the purchase or sale
values of securities transacted through them. The purchase or sale values have not been treated as transactions with
connected persons as the ultimate counter parties are not connected persons.

The rate of return on this deposit is 8.5% per annum (2012: 10.5% per annum).
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's risk
management policies. The management of these risks is carried out by the investment committee under policies
approved by the Board of Directors.

The Fund primarily invests in fixed income instruments, money, stock and debt market instruments and government
securities with an objective of optimizing the return to the unit holders.

The Fund has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- Market risk
- Credit risk and
- Liquidity risk

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign exchange rate. The objective of market risk
management is to manage market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines and regulations laid down by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are carried
out in Pak Rupees.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Fund holds floating rate debt securities that expose the fund to cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in prevailing levels of market interest rates .

The Fund manages fair value risk by investing primarily in fixed and floating rate debt securities preferably with no cap
and floor to insulate the Fund from fair value interest rate risk.

As at June 30, 2013, the investment in debt securities exposed to interest rate risk is detailed in Notes 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in KIBOR on 30 June 2013, with all other variables held constant,
the net assets of the Fund and net income for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs. 0.04 million (2012:
Rs. 0.01 million).

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and KIBOR rates is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 30 June 2013 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the
Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates. The fluctuation in interest rate of 100 basis points is
reasonably possible in the current economic environment.

b)  Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
Presently, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instrument and is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity date.
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As at June 30, 2013

] Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed
Effective More than three to yield /
yield / Upto three More than one | = Y! Total
. months and up- interest rate
interest rate months year i
to one year risk
On-balance sheet financial instruments Rupees in '000-
Financial Assets
Balances with banks 8.50% 57,906 - - - 57,906
Investments - 6,239 - 259,380 265,619
Receivable against lending under margin trading system - - 21 21
Certificates of investment - - - -
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 2,798 2,798
Dividend and income receivable - - - 1,266 1,266
Other assets - - - 21,267 21,267
Deposits and prepayments - - - 3,083 3,083
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs - - - - -
57,906 6,239 - 287,815 351,960
Financial Liabilities
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 12,201 12,201
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company - - - 732 732
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 59 59
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 869 869
13,861 13,861
On-balance sheet gap 57,906 6,239 - 273,954 338,099
As at June 30, 2012
] Exposed to yield / interest rate risk Not exposed
Effective More than three to yield /
yield / Upto three More thanone | 0¥ Total
. months and up- interest rate
interest rate months year i
to one year risk
On-balance sheet financial instruments Rupees in '000
Financial Assets
Balances with banks 10.50% 115,743 - 115,743
Investments - 244,388 244,388
Receivable against lending under margin trading system - - - 3,632 3,632
Certificates of investment - - - 28,845 28,845
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 412 412
Dividend and income receivable - - - 1,679 1,679
Other assets - - - - -
Deposits and prepayments - - - 3,056 3,056
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs - - - 321 321
115,743 - - 282,333 398,076
Financial Liabilities
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 29,611 29,611
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company 969 969
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - - - 63 63
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 1,643 1,643
32,286 32,286
On-balance sheet gap 115,743 - - 250,047 365,790
Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.

The Fund is exposed to equity price risk because of investments held by the Fund and classified on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities as 'at fair value through profit or loss'. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities, the Fund diversifies its portfolio within the eligible stocks prescribed in the Trust Deed. The NBFC
Regulations also limit individual equity securities to no more than 10% of net assets, or issued capital of the investee
company and sector exposure limit to 25% of the net assets or index weight of securities whichever is higher, subject
to maximum of 35% of net assets.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in the KSE 100 index on June 30, 2013, net income for the year would increase /
(decrease) by Rs 12.57 million (2012: Rs 12.48 million) and net assets of the Fund would increase / (decrease) by the
same amount as a result of gains / (losses) on equity securities classified as 'at fair value though profit or loss.
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The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other variables
held constant and all the Fund's equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the index. This
represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE 100 Index, having regard to the
historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the
KSE 100 Index, is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2013 is
not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future movements in the level of the KSE 100 Index.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that
it has entered into with the Fund, resulting in a financial loss to the Fund. It principally arises from balances with banks,
receivable from sale of investment, dividend and profit receivables and deposits with central clearing companies. The
credit exposures arises from investment in debt securities is stated in note 5.2 5.3 and 5.4 to these financial
statements.

Credit risk management

It is the Fund's policy to enter into financial contracts with reputable, diverse and creditworthy counterparties and
wherever possible or deemed necessary obtain collaterals in accordance with internal risk management policies and
investment guidelines designed for credit risk management. However, for testing an investment for impairment the
management does not consider the value of collaterals or other credit enhancements and follows the guidelines
provided by the SECP in terms of Circular 1 of 2009 and other clarification circulars issued by the SECP and
provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company. The Investment
Committee closely monitors the creditworthiness of the Fund’s counterparties by reviewing their credit ratings, financial
statements and press releases on a regular basis.

Exposure to credit risk

The Fund's maximum credit exposure, without taking into account collateral and other credit enhancement, at the
balance sheet date is represented by the respective carrying amount of relevant financial assets i.e. balances with
bank, deposits with central clearing companies, placements, certificates of investments and dividend and profit
receivable in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The credit exposure arises from investments detailed in note 5.2,
5.3 and 5.4 to these financial statements.

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss
due to the failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually
agreed. Credit risk relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be minimal as the Fund uses brokers
with high creditworthiness and the transactions are settled or paid for only upon delivery using central clearing system.

Balances with bank

As at June 30, 2013, the Fund kept surplus liquidity with bank having following credit ratings. The rating to respective
bank is assigned by reputable credit rating agencies. The rating of the banks is monitored by the Fund Manager and
Investment Committee.

Bank balance by rating category 2013 2012
AA+ 0.01% 0%
A 0.02% 0%

BBB 99.97% 100%

100% 100%

Investment in debt securities

Credit risk on debt investments is mitigated by investing primarily in investment grade rated investments and purchase
of certificate of investments or by making placements with financial institutions having sound credit rating. Where the
investment is considered doubtful / becomes non-performing , a provision is recognised as per the criteria specified in
accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.
The management does not take into account the collateral value while considering investment for impairment testing.
Hence the collateral held is assumed to have zero financial effect in mitigating credit risk. The management regards
the credit worthiness of the borrower more important than the value of collateral and would be used as force majeure ir
extremely difficult situation where recovery appears to be unlikely from customary measures like restructuring or
negotiations.



23.3

20

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's investment in Term Finance Certificates, Sukuk
Certificates, Placements and Certificates of Investment as at June 30:

Debt Securities by rating category 2013 2012
AA- 14,763 -
Non-performing (rated D) 18,937 100.00

Deposits and prepayments

Deposits are placed with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) and Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited (CDC) for the purpose of affecting transaction and settlement of listed securities. It is expected that
all securities deposited with NCCPL and CDC will be clearly identified as being assets of the Fund, hence
management believes that the Fund is not materially exposed to a credit risk with respect to such parties.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. The
Fund’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-
worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Past due and impaired assets

None of the above financial assets were considered to be past due or impaired in 2013 and 2012 except for the
exposures and the provisions there against as detailed in note 5. The management has not quantified the value of
collaterals held against debt securities as management does not incorporate collaterals or other credit enhancements
into its credit risk management nor does it consider the value of collaterals while testing investments for impairment
and follows the circulars issued by the SECP for the purpose of making provision against non performing exposures
and provisioning policy of the Fund duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting it's obligations arising from it's financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets or that such obligations will have to be settled in a
manner disadvantageous to the Funds. Liquidity risk also arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be
required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its units on a regular
basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s option based on the Fund’'s applicable redemption price calculated in
accordance with the Fund’s constitutive documents and guidelines laid down by the SECP. Hence, unit holders' funds
appearing in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities represent the continuous obligation of the Fund for redemption by
its holders.

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund’s policy to managing liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, including estimated
redemptions of units as and when due, without incurring undue losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation. For
the purpose of making redemptions, the Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term. However, such need did not
arise during the year. The maximum amount available to the Fund from the borrowing would be limited to 15% of the
net assets up to 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund. The facility would bear interest at
commercial rates.

The Board of Directors of the Management Company is empowered to impose a redemption gap should redemption
level exceed 10% of the net assets value of the Fund in any redemption period. The liquidity position of the Fund is
monitored by the Fund Manager and Risk and Compliance Department on daily basis. The aim of the monitoring is to
ascertain the amount available for investment and also ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained to meet redemption
requests by analysing the historical redemption requests received by the Management Company.
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The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

As at June 30, 2013

More than
Up to three three months More than one Total
months and upto one year
—-(RUp€es in '000) -------mxrmmrmmrmmemeemoenes
Payable against purchase of investments 12,201 - - 12,201
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company 732 - - 732
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan -
Limited - Trustee 59 - - 59
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 869 - - 869
13,861 - - 13,861
As at June 30, 2012
More than
Up to three three months More than one Total
months and upto one year
—--(RUPEES iN '000) =---rnmmrmmmrmmmrmmmemmemcens
Payable against purchase of investments 29,611 - - 29,611
Payable to KASB Funds Limited - Management Company 969 - - 969
Payable to Central Depository Company of -
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 63 - - 63
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,643 - - 1,643
32,286 - - 32,286

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The amount of
net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily issuance
and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders. The Fund’'s objective when managing the unit holders' fund is to
safeguard the Fund'’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the benefits of the unit
holders, to maintain a strong base of assets to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund and to
meet unexpected losses or opportunities. As required under the NBFC Regulations, every open end scheme shall
maintain minimum fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs 100 million at all times during the life of scheme. In
order to comply with the requirement and to maintain or adjust the Unit Holders' Fund, the Fund'’s policy is to perform
the following:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount of
distributions the Fund pays to unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund, which include the ability to
restrict redemptions and require certain minimum holdings and issuance; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer critically track the
movement of ‘Assets Under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated regarding key performance
indicators e.g. yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each quatrter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirement of minimum fund size during the current year.
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value
estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the balance
sheet date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly different
from book values as the items are either short term in nature or periodically repriced.
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According to the amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard 7, Financial Instruments : Disclosure -
Improving disclosures about financial instruments, an entity shall classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, whether directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2) ; and

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3)

Investments carried at fair value are categorised as follows:

As at June 30, 2013 -------m--mmmmmmmmmem oo
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees in '000)

Financial assets classified as 'fair value through profit or loss'
Investment in equity securities - listed 221,239 - - 221,239
Investment in term finance and sukuk certificates - - 13,422 13,422

Financial assets classified as 'available for sale’
Investment in equity securities - unlisted - 10,680 - 10,680
Investment in term finance and sukuk certificates - - 20,278 20,278

As at June 30, 2012 -------m--mmmmmmmmmeeeeee
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees in '000)

Financial assets classified as 'fair value through profit or loss'
Investment in equity securities - listed 214,389 - - 214,389
Investment in term finance and sukuk certificates - - - -

Financial assets classified as 'available for sale’
Investment in equity securities - unlisted - - - -
Investment in term finance and sukuk certificates - - 29,999 29,999

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has approved a final dividend distribution of Rs. 10.5 per unit for
the year ended June 30, 2013 amounting to Rs. 74.26 million in their meeting held on July 4, 2013. The financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 do not include the effect of this appropriation which will be accounted for
in the financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2014.

DETAILS OF PATTERN OF UNITHOLDING

Cateqor Number of Investment Percentage of
gory unit holders amount investment
Individuals 7 5,948 1.76
Associated companies 1 308,569 91.54

Banks / Financial Institutions - - -

Others 1 22,603 6.70
9 337,120 100.00

———————————————————— As at June 30, 2012 ------------------

Cateqor Number of Investment Percentage of
gory unit holders amount investment

Individuals 7 6,864 1.88
Associated companies 1 252,243 69.14
Banks / Financial Institutions 1 87,270 23.92
Others 1 18,460 5.06

10 364,837 100.00
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28 LIST OF TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID

2013
1 Pearl Securities Limited 11.59%
2 KASB Securities Limited 9.42%
3 Arif Habib Limited 7.63%
4 Foundation Securities Limited 7.75%
5 Standard Capital Securities (Private) Limited 6.46%
6 M.M. Securities (PVT.) Ltd. 6.39%
7 Habib Metropolitan Finance Services Limited 6.34%
8 IGI Finex Securities Limited 6.30%
9 Al habib Capital Market (Private) Limited 5.95%
10 Fortune Securities Ltd. 5.15%
2012
1 Foundation Securities Limited 15.34%
2 Pearl Securities Limited 13.88%
3 Fortune Securities Limited 12.32%
4 KASB Securities Limited 8.97%
5 Habib Metropolitan Finance Services Limited 7.98%
6 Invest & Finance Securities Limited 6.37%
7 Invisor Securities (Private) Limited 6.04%
8 Arif Habib Limited 5.82%
9 Al habib Capital Market (Private) Limited 4.09%
10 Standard Capital Securities (Private) Limited 3.58%

29 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The 60th, 61st, 62nd, 63rd, 64th, 65th, 66th, and 67th Board meetings were held on July 05, 2012, August 29, 2012,
September 14, 2012, October 04, 2012, October 24, 2012, February 21, 2013, April 08, 2013, and April 29, 2013,
respectively. Information in respect of attendance by the Directors in the meetings is given above:

Number of meetings
N f Direct Meeti t attended
ame of Director Held Attended Leave eetings not attende
granted
Mr. Robert C. Richard Owen 8 6 2 61st and 67th meeting
Mr. Muzaffar Ali Shah Bukhari 8 7 1 66th meeting
Mr. Qaisar P. Mufti 8 8
Mr. Amer Magbool 8 8
30 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER
Name of Member Designation Qualification Experience in
years
1 Amer Magbool Chief Executive Officer MBA 17
2 Hussain Jaffer Ali Khoja Head of Investments ACCA 10
3 Irfan Nepal Fund Manager B.Com 19
4 Sagib Shah Fund Manager MBA 10
5 Mohsin Raza Wasaya Fund Manager B.Com 5
6 Syed Adnan Abdali Chief Financial Officer ACMA 9
7 Adnan Akhtar Mannan Compliance Manager ACCA 10

Mr. Irfan Nepal is the Manager of the Fund. He is also the Fund Manager of Crosby Dragon Fund.
31 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,

wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. No
significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.
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DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 27 2013 by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise specified.

For KASB Funds Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer Directo





